
      
 

                 CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
                                                                                       Tuesday – September 24, 2024 – 6:00 PM  
                             

 
    Shawn O’Neill,     

Mayor 
soneill@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Brian Watson, 
Council Position No.1 
bwatson@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Ivan Wiediger, 
Council Position No.2 
iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Don Webster, 
Council Position No.3 
dwebster@cityofnapavine.com  
 

Heather Stewart, 
Council Position No.4 
hstewart@cityofnapavine.com 
 

Duane Crouse, 
Council Position No.5  
dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com 
 
 
Staff Members 
Rachelle Denham, 
City Clerk 
 

Michelle Whitten, 
City Treasurer 
 

Bryan Morris, 
PW Director 
Community Development 
 

John Brockmueller, 
Chief of Police 
 

Allen Unzelman 
Honorable Judge-Municipal Court 
 

Jim Buzzard, 
Legal Counsel 
 
 

City of Napavine 
407 Birch Ave SW 
P O Box 810 
Napavine, WA  98565 
360-262-3547 
 
City Website 
www.cityofnapavine.com 
 
 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
II.   INVOCATION 
III.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
IV.   ROLL CALL 
V.   APPROVAL OF AGENDA – AS PRESENTED 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  

1) Regular Council Meeting – September 10, 2024 
 

VII. STAFF & COUNCIL REPORT   

VIII. CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

1) Vouchers – M. Whitten 
2) ILA Between City of Napavine & Lewis County Sheriff’s Office 

Regional Evidence Facility – J. Brockmueller 
3) Mercury Auctions Government Agency Contract- J. Brockmueller 
4) Chehalis Tribal Jail Service Agreement – J. Brockmueller 

 
                                       

X. ADJOURNMENT – CLOSE OF MEETING 

 
Council Meeting is held in person and via Teleconference.  

         Teleconference Information 

         Dial-in number (US): (720) 740-9753 

             Access code: 8460198 

         To join the online meeting: https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8 

mailto:soneill@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:bwatson@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:iwiediger@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dwebster@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:hstewart@cityofnapavine.com
mailto:dcrouse@cityofnapavine.com
http://www.cityofnapavine.com/
https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8


 

NAPAVINE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
September 10, 2024, 6:00 P.M. 

Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 
 

 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Shawn O’Neill called the regular city council meeting to order at 6:00 pm.  

INVOCATION:  
The invocation was led by Bryan Morris. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
Mayor Shawn O’Neill, led the flag salute.          

ROLL CALL:   

Council members present: Brian Watson Councilor #1, Ivan Wiediger Councilor #2, Duane Crouse, Mayor Pro Tem. 

City staff members present: City Clerk - Rachelle Denham, Chief of Police – John Brockmueller, CD/PW Director 
Bryan Morris, Treasurer - Michelle Whitten, Legal Counsel, Jim Buzzard.    

MOVED: Brian Watson Motion: Excuse Heather Stewart and Don 
Webster. 
 

SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried: 3 aye and 0 nay.                                        

 

CONSENT/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approval of Agenda- As Presented. 
 SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried: 3 aye and 0 nay.                                        

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  

MOVED: Brian Watson Motion: Approval of Meeting Minutes - Regular 
Council Meeting August 13, 2024. SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried: 3 aye and 0 nay.                                        

STAFF & COUNCIL REPORTS:  

John Brockmueller – Chief of Police 
• Greetings to the council, report in writing & operations normal.  The motorcycle has been working the 

school zone. 
 
Michelle Whitten – Treasurer 

• Report in writing.    
 
Rachelle Denham – City Clerk 

• Report in writing. 
 
 



2 
 

Bryan Morris - PW/CD Director   
• Report in writing. The city received the final award for Jefferson Station. 

 
Planning Commission – Amy Morris 

• Napavine Development codes worked on and forwarded to the council. 16.05 Definitions, 16.02 General, 
and 16.03 Administration. Codes are being reviewed by legal counsel and then will be presented to the 
council. 

 
LC Fire Dist 5 – Sandra White 

• Calls handled; 16 EMS, 4 Fire, 7 others for a total of 27 calls bringing YTD to 887 calls. Mutual Aid received 
2 and requested 0 times. Two MOB units deployed to the Oregon and Huckleberry fires. Trunk & Treat on 
10/31 from 5pm-6:30pm at the fire station partnering with the city and is farm themed.  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS – NON-AGENDA ITEMS:  The recording link can be accessed for entire citizen comments. This is a brief 
summary and not verbatim. 

• Rick Carns, 122 Johnson Rd. N Winlock: Presented a flyer for the Funtime Festival Christmas Lighted Parade. The time 
of parade should not conflict with high school championship game as in prior years. Would like the city to place lights 
in the park and kitchen. Also asked that the city fix the electrical box at triangle for lighting. The parade is on the first 
Saturday in December at 6pm. 

• Ron Johnson, 282-14 B Woodard Rd. Chehalis: Had questioned specifically aimed at Bryan regarding the Ripple Creek 
Passage Culvert Project. It is Allen Creek and is a salmon bearing creek and is not a drainage corridor. The creeks have 
names, and it is not Ripple Creek. He believes that names should be used. Spoke about ponds and creeks. The mayor 
stated that he is not sure where the confusion has come about regarding Ripple Creek.  The mayor has had three 
conversations today and agrees that the stream that comes off Woodard is Allen Creek. Bryan stated that the creek at 
Woodard Rd. has nothing to do with Ripple Creek and it is a fish bearing creek at Woodard Rd. As for the agenda that 
is being talked of tonight, that is the spring that comes from the back of the mill, runs across Mill Rd, 603 to the bio 
fields. Ron stated that it is not a drainage corridor it is a creek, and he rests his case.  The second item to be addressed 
is the wells that are down. He believes that the city received some grant money to fix them. At the last meeting he 
heard Bryan say with the second well going down there is insufficient well water supply to the city. With all the 
upcoming building going on. Will the money fix Jefferson Station and fix all the water supply to fix the problem. The 
mayor stated that the city has gone out for RFQ’s and that we are a pilot city and didn’t expect this outcome. The 
mayor clarified Jefferson Station is a pump that pumps the water from the wells. Bryan stated that Jefferson Station is 
a sewer pump lift station and has nothing to do with water wells, two separate things. The funding we got is to 
upgrade Jefferson Station and has nothing to do with PFAS. Ron asked, what are we going to do to satisfy inadequate 
well supply. Will a new well be drilled? The mayor replied with two wells. The wells are not located anywhere yet and 
that is why there is a bid out now.  

• Jeremy Johnson, Lifelong resident of Woodard Rd: Jeremy read his comment from his laptop voicing concerns in total 
opposition of the 195-home development being proposed on Woodard Rd. He has voiced his opposition over the last 
year to the city and feels upset, angry, and attacked as to people making fun of his dad from people on the Building 
Commission. It’s not the school’s fault and the school can’t take on more kids. Traffic and crime will rise with the new 
homes. He also has concerns about Allen Creek which is a salmon bearing creek not a drainage ditch contrary to what 
Bryan says. He has spoken many times to the council and mayor about the salmon that run up the creek. He gets no 
response from the city on how it’s been renamed. He feels no matter what he says or does the city doesn’t care and 
the City of Napavine will do what they want.  

• Bob Bozarth, 247-06 Woodard Rd. Chehalis: There will be a community meeting on Thursday, September 12th at 7pm 
in his field. This meeting is to educate everyone on the Woodard Rd project. His plan is to have one representative 
from each entity to include City of Napavine, LCFD #5, School Superintendent, and LC PUD. They will have 5 minutes to 
speak on the topic followed up with Q&A specific to each entity. Hopefully all questions will be answered. This meeting 
will be controlled and held in a mannerly and respectful way. There will be NO lynching allowed on his property.  

 

 
 



3 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
VOUCHERS- M. WHITTEN  
There are two sets of vouchers. One for the second part of August and the first council meeting in September due 
to the council only meeting once in August. 

 
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approval of the Vouchers dated 
September 2024 First Council Meeting. SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion:  No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye and 0 nay. 

 
 
ILA CITY OF CHEHALIS, CITY OF NAPAVINE & LCWSD #4 SEWER TREATMENT SERVICES AND 
RATES –B. MORRIS & R. DENHAM  
 

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approve ILA for Sewer Rates with 
Chehalis. SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: Mayor O’Neill provided some additional information regarding the renewal of 
agreement.  

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye 0 nay. 
 
 
LETTER OF SUPPORT: RIPPLE CREEK FISH PASSAGE CULVERT PROJECT – B. MORRIS 
 

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Approve and allow Mayor to sign the 
letter of support. SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye 0 nay. 

 
 
AM 24-12: LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWAL ANNIE’S MARKET – R. DENHAM 
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Approve AM 24-12 Liquor License 
Renewal. SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye 0 nay. 

 
 
 
 



4 
 

RESOLUTION 24-09-151: AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES ON FEDERAL REIMBURSEMENT 
REQUESTS – M. WHITTEN 
  

MOVED: Duane Crouse Motion: Adopt Resolution 24-09-151. SECONDED: Brian Watson 
Discussion: No Discussion. 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3aye 0 nay. 
 
INTERPRETER REIMBURSEMENT GRANT – L. DEWITT 
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Accept Interpreter Reimbursement 
Grant. SECONDED: Brian Watson 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye 0 nay. 

 
MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT LEWIS COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS – B. MORRIS 
 

MOVED: Brian Watson Motion: Approve Master Interlocal Agreement 
Lewis County Public Works. SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye 0 nay. 

 
REIMBURSABLE WORK ORDER GUARDRAIL REPAIR #24-001 – B. MORRIS 
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: Accept the Reimbursable Work Order 
for Guardrail Repair. SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: Chief Brockmueller is looking to get restitution from the driver who crashed into 
the guard rail once it goes through the court process.  

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye 0 nay. 
 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES ILA – R. DENHAM 
 

MOVED: Brian Watson Motion: Approve Emergency Management 
Services ILA. SECONDED: Ivan Wiediger 

Discussion: No Discussion. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye 0 nay. 

 
 ADJOURNMENT:  
 

MOVED: Ivan Wiediger Motion: To Adjourn – Close of Meeting 
 SECONDED: Duane Crouse 

Discussion: Meeting Adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: 3-0 Motion Carried; 3 aye and 0 nay. 

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online from 
freeconferencecall.com or at the link https://fccdl.in/czMO9ZLjWk . 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Rachelle Denham, City Clerk                                 Shawn O’Neill, Mayor      Councilor 

https://fccdl.in/czMO9ZLjWk


Date

BHC Consultants

9/5/2024

Capital Business Machines

9/9/2024

9/9/2024

CHS Northwest Inc

8/29/2024

City of Napavine

9/16/2024

9/16/2024

9/11/2024

CivicPlus LLC

9/16/2024

9/16/2024

CT Publishing LLC dba The Chronicle

9/16/2024

Esco Pacific Signs, Inc.

9/18/2024

H. D. Fowler Company

9/4/2024

9/4/2024

Jackson Civil Engineering LLC

9/17/20240016-27-11 $12,780.00 Jefferson Station -SEPA/Field Inspections 

etc

Reference Number: 39269 $12,780.00

08277556 $200.96 14"x16" Di Meter box cover

08285007 $423.68 2" macro two bolt coupling

Reference Number: 39268 $624.64

Reference Number: 39267 $756.71

33300 $756.71 4 Custom Banners

282317 $81.00 pass thru Tiger Meadows  NOA

Reference Number: 39266 $81.00

312153 $973.80 Online Code Hosting 10/1/24-9/30/25

312154 $1,983.31 Full service Supplemenation Subscription 

10/1/24-9/30/25

Reference Number: 39265 $2,957.11

2024*08 Security $307.01 2024*08 Security

2024*08 Utility Tax $11,984.94 2024- Aug Water/Sewer Service Utility 

Tax

Reference Number: 39264 $12,605.09

2024*07 Security $313.14 2024*07 Security

380978 $837.43 210 gallons off road fuel

Reference Number: 39263 $837.43

INV225606 $227.87 2024 8/1-8/31 copies CH

INV225607 $148.04 2024 8/1-8/30 Copies

Reference Number: 39262 $375.91

Reference Number: 39261 $17,994.97

0021133 $17,994.97 Jefferson Station July 27-Aug 23

         Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

                     September 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

September 2nd Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Register Activity 1



Date

                     September 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

LCSO-Corrections Bureau

9/16/2024

9/11/2024

LECO Supply, Inc

8/29/2024

Lemay Mobile Shredding

9/1/2024

Lewis County Communicaton

9/4/2024

Lewis County Sheriffs Office

9/5/2024

Lewis County Treasurer

9/16/2024

Lexipol, LLC

9/1/2024

Minuteman Press

9/9/2024

9/12/2024

Modern Marketing

9/16/2024

Pointe Pest Control

9/6/20242875120 $269.75 Pest Control Qtrly

Reference Number: 39279 $269.75

Reference Number: 39278 $378.46

MMI159234 $378.46 1,000 Shield  Stickers

1078a $316.56 1000 self stick envelopes

Reference Number: 39277 $386.09

1055 $69.53 Building Inspection forms

INVPRA11240972 $618.14 PoliceOne Academy Annual Rate 

10/1/2024-9/30/2025

Reference Number: 39276 $618.14

Reference Number: 39275 $20.55

2024*Aug CV $20.55 2024 -  Aug Court Remittance

2024*Aug Evidence $758.24 Evidence Facility Services 

Reference Number: 39274 $758.24

Reference Number: 39273 $16,558.50

INV 9357 $16,558.50

4855961S185 $132.00 Shred Service 8/30/2024

Reference Number: 39272 $132.00

Reference Number: 39271 $611.55

225890 $611.55 Chlorine 2 drums

2024 Aug Prisoner Medical $14.58 2024 Aug Prisoner Medical

Reference Number: 39270 $1,899.98

2024 Aug Prisoner Bill $1,885.40 2024 -Aug  22# of beds days

Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

September 2nd Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Register Activity 2



Date

                     September 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

Providence Hospital/cent

9/5/2024

Quill Corporation

9/4/2024

Rodda Paint Co

9/9/2024

State Treasurer's Office

9/16/2024

Toledotel

9/1/2024

US Bank Corp Payment Syst

8/6/2024

8/21/2024

8/27/2024

8/30/2024

8/7/2024

8/2/2024

8/7/2024

9/5/2024

8/29/2024

8/15/2024

8/14/2024

8/29/2024

9/5/2024

8/9/2024

8/28/2024

8/27/2024

8/6/20248923815 Loves $66.43 Roadside Tire Care

840-59800250-2-3349516-1 US Postal $73.00 Flags2024Coil/100

845009 Market Street Ace Hardware $43.26 DSP Glove NIT XL BLK 

840-59800250-1-3869002-2 US Postal $10.97 Salvner Certified Connection Notice 

840-59800250-2-3336414-2 US Postal $219.00 Clerk/Utilities Postage Stamps 3 rolls 

840-59800250-1-3844865-2 US Postal $49.24 USPS-CSO  Postage 

840-59800250-1-3863131-1 US Postal $219.00 Postage  Flags2024Coil/100 1 roll Jury 

mailings 2 rolls 

476850 Tractor Supply CO $179.56 Flatfree Handtruck tire assembly 

76096873 Free Conference Call $3.25 Free Conference Call - File Storage 8/15-

9/14

111-8956154-5723432 Amazon $74.44 Storage Boxes for Records Room 

42450967 MRSC Training $40.00 MRSC.ORG  Deep Dive: Law 

Enforcement Records 

111-6040109-8065860 Amazon $56.11 Storage Boxes for Records Room 

111-7425763-1837019 Amazon $76.57 Clerk Office supplies(pens, staples, 

utensils, paper towels)

012587 Soft Touch Car Wash $12.45 car wash 

057102 Dollar General $36.15 animal control/food for impound pet

012148 Soft Touch Car Wash $12.45 car wash 

012514 Soft Touch Car Wash $16.60 car wash

Reference Number: 39285 $1,464.34

Reference Number: 39284 $350.62

10060609 $350.62 2024 VOIP 9/1-9/30

2024*Aug State Remit $728.46 2024*Aug State Remit

Reference Number: 39283 $728.46

Reference Number: 39282 $361.60

43111500 $361.60 5 gallons yellow paint

40418856 $242.72 5 cartons paper

Reference Number: 39281 $242.72

Reference Number: 39280 $24.00

13782607 $24.00 Prisoner Medical Costs 8/12-8/27

Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

September 2nd Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Register Activity 3



Date

                     September 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

8/23/2024

8/27/2024

US Bank NA Cincinnati

9/16/2024

WA Dept of Transportation

8/31/2024

Winlock Auto Supply

9/17/2024

Zieske, Lewis

8/19/2024

Dept of Revenue

9/11/2024

DE Lage Landen Financial Services

9/7/2024

WAVE

9/1/2024

WAVE

9/1/2024

WAVE

9/1/2024

US Cellular

9/2/2024

Dept of Treasury Internal Revenue 

Service9/17/2024

Reference Number: EFT*20240924 $7,696.61

Federal Income Tax - 15303 $179.82

0676570077 $55.70 Mayor cell phone 9/2-10/1  2024

Reference Number: EFT*20240923 $55.70

Reference Number: Eft*20240922 $112.10

138396801-0011023 $112.10 2024-  WAVE Phone PD 9/1-9/30

138091001-0011023 $112.10 Mayme Internet 2024 9/1-9/30

Reference Number: EFT*20240921 $112.10

Reference Number: EFT*20240920 $112.10

138396701-0011023 $112.10 2024  WAVE Internet 9/1-9/30

83020578 $464.00 2024 -Sharp MX307105 CITY HALL 

PD/Court 9/1-9/30

Reference Number: EFT*20240919 $464.00

Reference Number: EFT*20240918 $8,679.97

2024*Aug Excise Tax $8,679.97 2024*Aug Excise Tax

2024*Aug Judge Pro tem $530.00 5 1/3 hours Aug 15,2024

Reference Number: 39289 $530.00

Reference Number: 39288 $91.50

4847-389142 $91.50 '08 Dodge Ram Grease CWP

RE*FB91458002251 $2,980.18 2024*08 fuel

Reference Number: 39287 $2,980.18

Reference Number: 39286 $122.00

2024*AUG MONTHLY FEES $122.00 2024- AUG  Bond Fee

INV270586546 Zoom $17.03 Period Aug 27-Sept 26 Zoom subscription - 

court 

AD02689507649CUS ADOBE $258.83 ADOBE Subscription Annual Plan 

Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

September 2nd Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Register Activity 4



Date

                     September 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

Medicare - 15310 $52.82

Medicare - 15310 (2) $52.82

Medicare - 15309 $38.22

Medicare - 15309 (2) $38.22

Medicare - 15308 $51.78

Medicare - 15308 (2) $51.78

Medicare - 15307 $51.36

Medicare - 15307 (2) $51.36

Medicare - 15306 $47.99

Medicare - 15306 (2) $47.99

Medicare - 15305 $55.13

Medicare - 15305 (2) $55.13

Medicare - 15304 $65.87

Medicare - 15304 (2) $65.87

Medicare - 15303 $42.31

Medicare - 15303 (2) $42.31

Federal Income Tax - 15318 $679.26

Federal Income Tax - 15319 $168.06

Federal Income Tax - 15316 $206.42

Federal Income Tax - 15317 $365.07

Federal Income Tax - 15314 $169.74

Federal Income Tax - 15315 $239.70

Federal Income Tax - 15312 $309.23

Federal Income Tax - 15313 $316.10

Federal Income Tax - 15310 $474.22

Federal Income Tax - 15311 $224.79

Federal Income Tax - 15308 $388.46

Federal Income Tax - 15309 $302.29

Federal Income Tax - 15306 $422.94

Federal Income Tax - 15307 $474.11

Federal Income Tax - 15304 $636.81

Federal Income Tax - 15305 $553.37

Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

September 2nd Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Register Activity 5



Date

                     September 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

Payroll Vendor

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

ACH Pay - 15313 $2,150.63

ACH Pay - 15314 $2,142.19

ACH Pay - 15311 $1,725.22

ACH Pay - 15312 $1,966.00

ACH Pay - 15309 $1,967.83

ACH Pay - 15310 $2,465.06

ACH Pay - 15307 $2,400.28

ACH Pay - 15308 $2,481.65

ACH Pay - 15305 $2,646.32

ACH Pay - 15306 $2,239.51

ACH Pay - 15303 $2,013.73

ACH Pay - 15304 $3,071.72

Reference Number: Sept 1-15, 2024 $38,282.96

Medicare - 15319 $36.11

Medicare - 15319 (2) $36.11

Medicare - 15318 $65.61

Medicare - 15318 (2) $65.61

Medicare - 15317 $42.72

Medicare - 15317 (2) $42.72

Medicare - 15316 $38.94

Medicare - 15316 (2) $38.94

Medicare - 15315 $44.62

Medicare - 15315 (2) $44.62

Medicare - 15314 $41.51

Medicare - 15314 (2) $41.51

Medicare - 15313 $42.05

Medicare - 15313 (2) $42.05

Medicare - 15312 $41.22

Medicare - 15312 (2) $41.22

Medicare - 15311 $34.85

Medicare - 15311 (2) $34.85

Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

September 2nd Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Register Activity 6



Date

                     September 2024 Second Council Meeting

Reference Amount Notes

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

9/17/2024

TOTAL

The following voucher/warrants/electronic payments are approved for payment:

Accounts Payable 29 54 77,541.54   39261-39289

Electronic Payments 6 6 9,535.97     EFT*20240918-23

Payroll Vendors 0 0 -               

Electronic Payroll 1 1 7,696.61     EFT*20240924

ACH Direct Deposit 17 17 38,282.96   Direct Deposit 9/20/2024

Total Vouchers 53 78 $133,057.08

VOID Checks 39171/39259/39260

WE, THE FOLLOWING SIGNEES, APPROVE THE VOUCHERS FOR PAYMENT:

MAYOR: __________________________________________________________

TREASURER: _________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #1: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #2: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #3: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #4: ___________________________________________________

COUNCILOR #5: ___________________________________________________

Police Department - John Brockmueller_____________________________

Public Works/Community Development - Bryan Morris ________________

Court- Lacie Dewitt _______________________________________________

City Clerk - Rachelle Denham:_____________________________________

DATED THIS     DAY OF             ,2024

ACH Pay - 15319 $1,809.13

$133,057.08 

ACH Pay - 15317 $2,171.94

ACH Pay - 15318 $3,025.72

ACH Pay - 15315 $2,008.31

ACH Pay - 15316 $1,997.72

Voucher Report Sept 24, 2024

September 2nd Council Meeting  City of Napavine - Register Activity 7



































Public Works/Community Development 
407 Birch Ave SW, PO Box 810 Napavine, WA 98565 

Phone: (360) 262-9344 
www.cityofnapavine.com 

 

The City of Napavine is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 
Incorporated November 21, 1913 

 

 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Bryan Morris, PW/CD Director 

RE:  Staff Report for Council Meeting, September 24, 2024 

 
• Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

o Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – September 3, 2024 
 

• Project Updates 
o Scots Industries – Stabilizing soils for winter and containing stormwater runoff.  Waiting for the final 

submittal on the water system upgrade for the Birch Avenue Booster Station.  
 

o TA – Delayed. Tribal artifacts were found on site. Area of tribal artifacts is flagged until 
DAHP permit can be processed. Also waiting on WSDOT for final off-site (interchange) 
Approval. 
 

o AT&T Cell Tower – Vertical Bridge has obtained a signed pass-through agreement. The City Attorney is 
reviewing the proposed lease to verify if the prior conditional use permit is still applicable.   

 
o Rush Road STIP – Waiting for contracts from the Rush Road engineer. 

 
o Woodard Road – NOA and SEPA comment period closed on September 16th. Currently reviewing 

comments to begin drafting staff report. Once the staff report is complete, a Public Hearing will be set 
for the Planning Commission.  
 

o 2nd Ave SE Overlay Project – Waiting for the final pay submittal to close out this job.  
 

o Ripple Creek Fish Passage Culverts – Grant submission was September 16th, waiting for results.  
 

o Skate Park – Preliminary application submitted.  Selected to submit Final application.  Final application 
submitted and in the review process.  Awards will be determined in October.  

 
o Jefferson Station – Design plans at 60%.  Additional .09 funds were granted.  PWB grant has been 

tentatively awarded. 
 

o Well 3 – shut down due to PFAS. 
 

o Well 2 – turned off for PFAS on 06/12/24.   
 

o Water – Selected a Hydrogeologist   
 

 

http://www.cityofnapavine.com/







	2024-09-24 Reg Agenda
	2024-09-10 Regular Meeting Minutes
	2024-09-24 Vouchers
	LC Evidence Contract 2025
	Mercury Auction Contract 2024
	Chehalis Tribal Contract 2024-2025
	Staff Report-CD PW
	Bryan Staff Report 09.24.24
	9.3.24 PC Minutes

	Staff Report-Police Dept

